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Gregory & Samantha Rathe TM# 38.-3-87.1 Appeal #
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a variance under town code 175-10, which limits the size of a garage associated with single
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limits the size of an accessory structure to V2 the size of the principal building.) (Continued from 
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ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
May 14, 2018 

MINUTES

The Zoning Board of Appeals for the Town of Philipstown held their regular monthly meeting 
on Monday, May 14, 2018, at the Philipstown Town Hall, 238 Main Street, Cold Spring, New 
York.

PRESENT: Robert Dee - Chairman
Vincent Cestone - Absent
Paula Clair - Absent
Granite Frisenda - Member
Leonard Lim - Member
Adam Rodd - Attorney (Drake Loeb PLLC)

**PLEASE NOTE that these minutes were abstracted in summary from being present at 
the meeting and the television video. If anyone should seek further clarification, please 
review the video.

Chairman Robert Dee opened the meeting at 7:30 P. M. with the Pledge of Allegiance.

Minutes

Chairman Robert Dee: First off is the minutes from April 23rd’s meeting. Anybody have any 
changes or corrections?

Leonard Lim: No.

Granite Frisenda: No.

Chairman Robert Dee: Okay. I make a motion that the minutes be accepted.

Leonard Lim: I move.

Chairman Robert Dee: All in favor?

Leonard Lim: Aye.

Granite Frisenda: Aye.

Chairman Robert Dee: Aye. There'll be two members absent tonight, they both called in sick. 
So, you’re gonna have to put up with three, three of us.
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Leonard Lindros - 593 Route 9D

Chairman Robert Dee: First order of business is Mr. Leonard Lindros 593 Route 9d, Garrison. 
How are you? Just tell us who you are and-

Leonard Lindros: Leonard Lindros Jr., Leonard W. Lindros Jr.

Chairman Robert Dee: I went to your site Saturday. I met you on Saturday down by your house 
and you showed me where you’re gonna put the garage and all, you know, and everything else. I 
think you said you had a letter from a neighbor that it was okay?

Leonard Lindros: It should be in there.

Chairman Robert Dee: Okay, and that was the neighbor who is next door so that would pretty 
much be the only one who would be affected by it right? I don't see here, the only thing I don’t 
see here, you know what I don’t see? I don't see a name or address of neighbors. See because we 
have to send out letters to-

Tara Percacciolo: No, there’s these and then I look them up on the computer.

Leonard Lindros: Well we have the Percacciolo’s next door to us.

Chairman Robert Dee: Alright.

Leonard Lindros: That's on the North and-

Chairman Robert Dee: Alright. Maybe you could get it.

Tara Percacciolo: I’ll get it.

Chairman Robert Dee: Get it from him. Okay, the secretary will get it from you, the neighbors, 
okay? I got - one of your questions, one of your answers to your question -1 just got, it was 
really, I found very interesting, was that your wife and you are gonna turn 80 this year.

Leonard Lindros: Yes.

Chairman Robert Dee: And you found it difficult to shovel out the vehicles.

Leonard Lindros: Well we're finding it more difficult, yes.

Chairman Robert Dee: I don't blame you. So that’s why you want the garage. Alright. I think 
everything is here. The only thing we’re gonna need is- 

Leonard Lim: Is this acceptable?

Chairman Robert Dee: Hand drawn? 2
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Leonard Lim: Yeah.

Chairman Robert Dee: Okay. You want, you want a architect to do it?

Leonard Lim: That’s - don’t we always?

Chairman Robert Dee: Okay. Your drawing is done by hand, a hand drawing, okay. The 
problem we have with that is that we usually require a architect to draw the drawing, so we have 
the exact measurements because your hand drawn measurements may not be exact, you know 
and everything so-

Leonard Lindros: They’re pretty good. I built, I did the drawings on the main house. I had 
them stamped.

Chairman Robert Dee: That was a while ago thought.

Leonard Lindros: But they were full size.

Chairman Robert Dee: Right, right, right, so, I think we're gonna ask, we’ll ask a drawing from 
an architect or somebody to give us the drawings, has to be stamped by an architect.

Leonard Lindros: Okay.

Granite Frisenda: Or an engineer.

Chairman Robert Dee: Or an engineer.

Leonard Lindros: Okay.

Chairman Robert Dee: Either, somebody, either an engineer or an architect to stamp the 
drawings. Or maybe the guy who's, maybe the guy who's gonna do the garage know’s somebody 
or something like that.

Leonard Lindros: Yeah, well, you're looking at the GA here.

Chairman Robert Dee: You're gonna do the garage too?

Leonard Lindros: Oh yeah, sure.

Chairman Robert Dee: Boy I'll tell you, you're a strong man, I'll tell you. Shovel your cars out 
at 80 and doing your own, building your own garage, you're okay in my book. All right, so, we're 
gonna need all that by next month because all this is is to approve your application to see that 
everything is, you know, here.

Leonard Lindros: Okay. 3
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Chairman Robert Dee: And we see that we need a couple of things, okay?

Leonard Lindros: But, we'll be able to go in a month from now?

Chairman Robert Dee: It will be, your meeting will be June, June 11th, be Monday June 11th. 
It’ll be here for and that'll be a public hearing.

Leonard Lindros: Yes.

Chairman Robert Dee: What they’ll do is, the secretary, she’ll send out notices to your 
surrounding neighbors notifying them of what you plan to do. And then, if anybody has any 
objections or concerns, or want to look at the plans, they can go to town hall, look at the plans 
and everything else like that.

Leonard Lindros: Can I cut into the ground?

Chairman Robert Dee: No.

Leonard Lindros: I cannot, okay.

Chairman Robert Dee: You know, you can call the building inspector on that but as far as I'm 
concerned, no.

Leonard Lindros: Okay, because, all I wanted to do is just, there’s all ledge right there where 
I’m building this and I wanted to make sure that it's, what concrete I'm gonna need and-

Chairman Robert Dee: Well, yeah, if you want to, if you’re looking about looking to see if 
there’s ledge I don't see, you know-1 don’t see an issue with it.

Leonard Lindros: As you can see there's not much digging.

Chairman Robert Dee: Right, right, so you wanna make sure you can build but you can't build 
anything as of yet.

Leonard Lindros: Oh no I didn't say build. I just want-

Chairman Robert Dee: Right, you just want to investigate the soil and stuff like that. Yeah, I 
don’t see any problem with that.

Leonard Lindros: Okay thank you very much.

Chairman Robert Dee: Okay thank you. We'll see you next month.

Leonard Lindros: Right.
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Tara Percacciolo: Can I just have someone move on the public hearing?

Chairman Robert Dee: Oh, I like a motion that, motion that the application be accepted as 
complete, of course with the exceptions of the two things that have to be done also.

Leonard Lim: I make a motion.

Chairman Robert Dee: Second?

Granite Frisenda: I’ll Second.

Chairman Robert Dee: Aye. All right. There’s only three guys here so it's gonna be tough. Moe, 
Larry & Curly. Alright. Okay.

Leonard Lim: When’s the meeting?

Chairman Robert Dee: June 11th. Next meeting is June 11th, right? That’s the second Monday? 

Granite Frisenda: That’s the second Monday?

Chairman Robert Dee: Yes.

Ward - 69 Hy Vue Terrace

Chairman Robert Dee: Okay. Next order of business is a public hearing on Daniel & Rebecca 
Ward, 69 Hy Vue Terrace, Cold Spring. The applicants seeking approval build a new, one story, 
2492 foot square detached garage which requires a variance under the town code 175-10, which 
limits the size of the garage associated with a single-family residence to 1000 square feet. They 
also seek a variance under town code 175-74, which limits the size of an accessory structure to 
half the size of the principal building. Correct?

Dan Ward: Correct. Yes.

Chairman Robert Dee: Okay. Want to tell us a little bit about what you're trying to do here?

Dan Ward: Sure. Well we have- okay. As you can see on the plat plan here, our house is, we 
have a very small house. We've been there for 30 years. We have 30 years’ worth of stuff packed 
everywhere. We have trusses in the ceiling. We have a very, it’s a very narrow, cheap, modular 
house from the 70s and we don't even want to park our cars in there because it’s so close to get in 
there. We have, we have three cars. I have a car that, that I'd like to store in there as well that's a, 
it’s a vintage car. We have, I don’t have a shed. We have our stuff sitting outside. We have a boat 
that we, we trailer to different marinas and stuff, that's sitting outside. I just have stuff all over 
my yard and I just think that it would be nice to put everything inside. In addition to that, we 
have, Rebecca, my wife's parents, which will probably be moving in with us soon and we need 
some room for their stuff. We just, we just need more space and I think just the appearance of the 
property would be better if we just put everything in the garage. So, it's kind of everything sitting5



in the driveway, so. And we decided, we've been here for 30 years, we want to retire here. We 
love it here. And we just want some room for our hobbies in the future too, so.

Chairman Robert Dee: Right.

Dan Ward: My wife’s a physical education teacher, she has lots of stuff. I'm a teacher as well, I 
have lots of stuff. We just, we would just like to have more space.

Leonard Lim: You’re talking about your in-laws moving in, is that living space above the 
garage? Is that what you’re making?

Dan Ward: No, absolutely not. Absolutely not.

Leonard Lim: Is there gonna be water or anything going up there?

Dan Ward: No.
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Leonard Lim: Just electricity.

Dan Ward: Probably just electricity. I mean, I'm even not even gonna put a second floor. If I 
can afford to in the future, I will, I'm just kind of looking for the long-term.

Leonard Lim: That’s what, I want to know about the future, if you're gonna build an apartment 
up there.

Dan Ward: No absolutely not. Absolutely not. No, we don't want-

Chairman Robert Dee: What do you mean by a second floor in the future?

Dan Ward: Just you know like for a loft area.

Chairman Robert Dee: Right.

Dan Ward: And, I mean, I may not, really at this point I don't even think I'm gonna put the 
dormers in there but, it’s just, we just basically want some storage and enough area to store 
vehicles and the boat and that sort of thing.

Chairman Robert Dee: I can tell you now, if we approve it we’re probably gonna put a 
restriction that there's no living space there.

Dan Ward: Yeah, I have no problem with that.

Chairman Robert Dee: okay

Dan Ward: No problem. I have no plans of putting an apartment up there. We don't want any 
tenants. We want a nice, quiet lifestyle- 6
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Chairman Robert Dee: Well it’s a big space, you know, it’s a big space, that’s what we’re 
trying to, you know.

Dan Ward: No, understandable. Good question.

Leonard Lim: Plus, you said your in-laws are coming, I figure you might put them out there. 

Chairman Robert Dee: Put them in the garage and lock the door.

Dan Ward: Don’t give me any ideas.

Chairman Robert Dee: Alright. Is there, before, is there anybody here who wants to speak on 
this? No? Okay let me note that there’s no opposition or no- Let me go over, we’re gonna go over 
the five factors with you here. These are questions we ask so we can get a determination. What 
are the possible detriment would the variance have on nearby neighbors? Your answer is, the 
neighbor to the left at 59 Hy Vue Terrace is 75 feet away and will see the garage the most. The 
other neighbors are lower or higher and have trees as a buffer so it won't be, you know, would 
not obstruct anybody's view. I guess there's no, like you say, the neighbors are all notified, there's 
nobody here really, against it, so we, that would, I guess-

Dan Ward: I've also got another letter from the neighbor across the street, Ken Barton.

Chairman Robert Dee: Okay.

Dan Ward: So, can I submit that?

Chairman Robert Dee: Oh, you can give that to the, give that to the secretary.

Dan Ward: Okay. That's in favor.

Chairman Robert Dee: Okay. Second question. If you didn't get the variance, how else could 
you build what you want to accomplish? The proposed location for the garage is the least 
intrusive area on our property. We would not be able to accomplish our goals with a smaller 
structure.

Leonard Lim: Why won’t a smaller structure help out? You have that much stuff to put in 
there?

Dan Ward: We've got three- I'm looking for the future too and our hobbies and that sort of 
thing. We just really don't have space in the house for anything. So, once we put everything in 
there, including my in-laws stuff we have three cars, a boat, I have a car, a vintage car, that I'd 
like to store in there.

Chairman Robert Dee: (Inaudible) had some vintage cars that you want to put in there or 
something like that. 7



Philipstown Zoning Board
Monthly Meeting Minutes
May 14, 2018

Dan Ward: Yeah, so just need, for-1 mean some people have hobbies where they collect little 
trinkets. I guess, my hobby, I just need more space.

Chairman Robert Dee: You are gonna put cars in there, you're not gonna load it with junk 
right? You’re gonna put cars in there; you’re not gonna load it with junk, are you?

Dan Ward: Yes.

Chairman Robert Dee: Cars, right? Cars.

Dan Ward: Yes.

Chairman Robert Dee: Okay, alright, just checking. Don’t want to put stuff in there that, you 
know, it’s supposed to be vintage cars in there and other things. Okay, no problem. What is the 
code requirement you seek to vary? Sections 175-10d and 175-74 B. That means, we have an 
ordinance where you can’t have a garage any bigger than 1000 square feet here and you’re going 
to, well you're more than doubling the size because you’re looking for 24. You’re not looking for 
any other variances. What I mean by that is, you don't need sideyard, you don't need a rearyard. 

Dan Ward: We are meeting all the setbacks.

Chairman Robert Dee: Right, you’re all within the setbacks on that. What impact or effect will 
the variance have on the current physical and environmental conditions of the area? See attached 
statement. Well, you tell me. What impact will, or effect, will the variace have on the current 
physical or environmental area? What do you think?

Dan Ward: The physical environmental area. Well, I mean-

Chairman Robert Dee: It's going to have a negative impact is what I'm trying to say.

Dan Ward: I’ve got, the property, compared to most of the properties on our road, as you come 
up Hy Vue Terrace, most of the properties are very narrow and long and they drop off in the 
back, and my property is at the top of the road, as it levels off at the top, and they are very flat 
and the lots are a lot more, there’s a lot more room, buildable space. So, this is an area here, that, 
on the side here, I've got trees. My neighbors have both cut down their trees to the property line 
on both sides. I've intentionally left trees to maintain a buffer for my neighbors. So, I'm leaving 
trees all along here, there’s trees going to be in front here, there's trees in front of my property 
and I'm gonna leave as many as I can behind here and also over here. And, so, I'm trying to 
maintain a buffer for my neighbors, not clear all my trees. I could have cleared all my trees, just 
like they did, and we'd be open. So, I'm trying to keep it, you know, from the road you're really 
not gonna see it, you know, in the spring and summer at all.

Chairman Robert Dee: Okay.

8



Dan Ward: And my neighbors in the back here, this does, as I said, it is, this slopes down and 
they're set down. When you stand in my backyard you see the tops of the houses back there and 
they also have woods behind them, so we have a nice buffered area, you know, the neighbors 
around there. I’ve tried to maintain that, even though my neighbors haven’t, but I’ve tried to do 
that, so I'm trying to be neighborly. I’m trying to be aware of, you know, keeping a little space 
between us and I think, I think they appreciate that.

Chairman Robert Dee: Okay.

Leonard Lim: Are you going to have a paved driveway and area around the garage?

Dan Ward: Not around the garage, no. The only part that I'm going to add is this- 

Leonard Lim: Show me where the pavement is.

Dan Ward: What's that?

Leonard Lim: You have pavement for a driveway?

Dan Ward: Yes, I do.

Leonard Lim: And there’s no, there’s not gonna be any pavement around the garage?

Dan Ward: No, the only pavement I’m adding is just this little part in the front here. This is 
existing.

Leonard Lim: Yeah.
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Dan Ward: And the only part I'm adding is this right here. There’s, no, there’s just going to be 
natural trees. I'm gonna leave trees very close on this side, so this whole front is going to be 
trees, in the back here there's going to be trees, and over here as well.

Leonard Lim: Okay the reason for my question is-

Dan Ward: Yes.

Leonard Lim: Between the pavement and the size of that garage, there’s gonna be a lot of 
runoff. Where is the runoff going? Is it heading towards the neighbor's property? Where’s your 
runoff from the water going?

Dan Ward: Well that’s something that, I'm really not an expert on that. My architect could 
address that or-

Leonard Lim: Then you better bring him.

9



Dan Ward: Do we need to put in a dry well? Whatever the building department tells me to do 
I’ll do.

Chairman Robert Dee: Well, what's in the back of your property? You said it drops off?

Dan Ward: Yes, there’s houses here. Their lots go down to Perks and their whole back here is 
all woods. There's no, they really don't use it for anything.

Chairman Robert Dee: Okay. Does the water drain off there? I mean your regular rainwater?

Dan Ward: The regular rainwater, it kind of, my yard slopes this way, so it kind of goes this 
way.

Chairman Robert Dee: Okay.

Leonard Lim: Towards the neighbor. It flows towards the neighbors?

Dan Ward: It really doesn’t, I don't see it, it just seeps into the ground. I really don't see 
anything running off-

Leonard Lim: It ain’t gonna seep in with pavement.

Chairman Robert Dee: Yeah but how much pavement are you putting on? You already have a 
paved driveway correct?

Dan Ward: Yes, this is all existing. We’re adding this amount here, which is 613 square feet of 
pavement.

Leonard Lim: Yeah but there's gonna be runoff coming off the 2,000 square foot garage too.
It's all got to go somewhere. That’s what I’m trying to find out. Where’s it going?

Dan Ward: It’s gonna have gutters. It'll go to whatever the building department tells me I need 
to do. If I have to put it in a dry well I’ll put a dry well in. If you want me to dig out and put 
gravel back here, French drain or whatever.

Leonard Lim: I’m just trying to find out where all this run off is going to. Is it heading towards 
the neighbor's yard? Is it, where, is it heading towards the road? I don't understand where all your 
runoff is going.

Dan Ward: No it's an excellent question I just haven't gotten to that detail yet but, that's, I mean, 
would the building department be able to tell me what I need to do? Or my architect?

Leonard Lim: Who would do it? I don’t really know. Somebody has-

CROSSTALK - INAUDIBLE
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Adam Rodd: Let me just, there is no- you weren't referred for the need for a variance for 
impervious surface coverage. They- 

Chairman Robert Dee: Right.

Dan Ward: I’m at 16.5%.

Adam Rodd: He doesn’t need a variance for that. I mean, if the board wants some additional 
documentation to satisfy yourselves that the construction of this garage will not have detrimental 
water impacts to neighbors, is that what your concern is?

Leonard Lim: Exactly.

Adam Rodd: Well, I mean, if that’s the case, the board could leave the public hearing open, so 
you can supply the board with that documentation, if the board wants to do that. It's up to the 
board.

Leonard Lim: And I’d also like to let you know, with only 3 board members here, if we have a 
vote tonight, you need 3 yeses. If you get one no, you're gonna lose it. If you have five members 
here, you have a better shot at getting it. If you want to put it off until the next meeting when 
there's five members-

Chairman Robert Dee: Well if you want to come back next meeting with an answer to the 
runoff. What I mean by that is, you have, you're gonna have gutters there right? And you’re 
gonna have downspouts?

Dan Ward: Yes, yeah.

Chairman Robert Dee: You’re gonna have downspouts.

Dan Ward: Yes.

Chairman Robert Dee: All right, yeah, you might have, maybe a dry well to the downspouts 
might clear that up. You know what I’m trying to say?

Dan Ward: That's what I was figuring on because, you know, it's gonna need something like 
that.

Chairman Robert Dee: Yeah, I think if he put the gutters-

Leonard Lim: Yeah but it’s not in the plan.

Chairman Robert Dee: No it's not in the plan.

CROSSTALK - INAUDIBLE
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Leonard Lim: It would have to show me where anything’s going.

Chairman Robert Dee: It would have to be in the plan. I think if we can, if we keep the 
meeting open until next month and then come up with a plan for the runoff, basically from the 
roof, from the building like that. So, if you can put, you put gutters and if you could put 
downspouts with dry wells or something like that, for me, that would satisfy me, you know. I 
don’t know what's gonna satisfy the rest of the board but I wouldn’t have any problem with that. 
So that's what I’m suggesting you do, okay. Come up with the plan, show us on the plans how 
you're gonna take care of that and we'll put you on for next month, which is June 11th.

Dan Ward: Okay.
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Chairman Robert Dee: Okay. Is there anything else you think we require? Anything else?

Granite Frisenda: No.

Chairman Robert Dee: Okay thank you.

Dan Ward: Okay thank you.

Chairman Robert Dee: Alright so that’ll be held over until next month, he comes up with the 
plans for that.

Reymond - 28 & 30 Hudson River Lane

Chairman Robert Dee: Next one is a public hearing, is Dana & Kevin Reymond, 28 & 30 
Hudson River Lane, Garrison.

Mike Liguori: Good evening members of the board. If you could just bear with us, we’re gonna 
use the-

Chairman Robert Dee: Sure, go ahead, set up.

Mike Liguori: Thanks.

Chairman Robert Dee: Mr. Liguori, let’s just, I want to go this first so we know where we’re at 
here. You’re seeking approval for a new single-family residence and two garages which require 
various variances of both the principal structure as well as the accessory structure. You ready? 

Mike Liguori: I am, thank you.

Chairman Robert Dee: Okay, let’s start over again.

Mike Liguori: Okay.
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Chairman Robert Dee: All right you’re seeking an approval for a new single-family residence 
with two garages which require various variances for both the principles structure as well as the 
accessory structures and a special permit for the enlargement of non-conforming structure. The 
variances sought include, a variance to permit the non-conforming structures to be moved, 2 
variances for the side yard setback for the principal structure, one variance for the side yard 
setback for the accessory structure, 2 front yard setbacks for the accessory structure and a side 
yard setback for the deck.

Mike Liguori: That's correct.

Chairman Robert Dee: That’s correct. Okay. That’s a lot of variances. Explain it.

Mike Liguori: Good evening, members of the board. My name is Michael Liguori. I'm an 
attorney at Hogan and Rossi, Brewster, New York. I have with me Chuck Lembo Chuck is our 
architect for the Reymond project. Chuck is to my right, to my left is John Kalin. John is our 
civil engineer and has designed the upgrade to the septic system which is currently, has a 
contingent approval. The contingency is the proof of the submittal of the merger to the health 
department. We have a letter that says, your redesign is approved subject to our receipt of that 
document.

Chairman Robert Dee: Correct.

Mike Liguori: And, so what I’ll do is-

Chairman Robert Dee: The same will be here too.

Mike Liguori: Correct. Correct. I put three boards up in front of the Zoning Board and the 
public for purposes of the public hearing. The board to the right is our existing condition plan, 
that’s an as-built survey of the property. Number 28 is this structure that is right here and number 
30 is this structure that is right here; single-family residential, single-family residential, garage, 
garage.
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Chairman Robert Dee: Which is accessory?

Mike Liguori: So, right now, they are two separate parcels.

Chairman Robert Dee: Right.

Mike Liguori: The only thing that is accessory is the garage to each house.

Chairman Robert Dee: Okay.

Mike Liguori: Okay and if you, let me just grab my book, I’ll just give you some exact 
calculations.

Chairman Robert Dee: Are you going to put two new garages in?13
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Mike Liguori: Yes, yes. That’s the, I'll get to the existing, the proposal in just a minute. Okay. 
So, both 28 and 30 are identical in land size; 28 is 15,850 square feet, 30 is also 15,850 square 
feet. And, as we made the board aware at the last meeting and also in our presentation 
documents, the bulk of these parcels are submerged in the Hudson River. So, if you see the blue, 
this is where our property line ends, out here into the river and then comes back. So, these are 
fairly long parcels of land and that's consistent with the parcels that are located in Manitou, 
which is the hamlet in which these properties are located.

Chairman Robert Dee: The blue is the water, is that what-

Mike Liguori: The blue is the water, but our title, we have fee title all the way out to this 
particular point.

Chairman Robert Dee: Correct. So, a portion of the lot is under water.

Mike Liguori: A good portion is under water, that's correct. So, at 28 we have an approximately 
876 square foot single-family residential structure with a 396 square foot garage, that's this 
garage right here. Number 30, we have a 1497 square-foot single-family residential structure, 
two-story house, and a 396 square foot garage. The proposal is to, we've made application to the 
Zoning Board for a proposal to merge these two parcels into one parcel and to construct a new 
single-family residence within the northerly and southerly footprints of the existing, of what 
exists. So, the proposed new structures, new structure, it's a single-family residence. It's 
comprised of two buildings. We also have two garages. And the proposal is to relocate. So, here 
we are on 28, we're going to stay within the footprint of the northern property line on 28. We're 
gonna relocate the garage, which is presently about three feet away from the property line, to a 
point that's almost 13 feet away, so that garage is going to come in. On 30, we're going to stay 
within the side yard of the property to the south, the Matero property. We’re going to maintain a 
19, approximately 19 square foot distance and we're gonna enlarge this structure and if you see 
the gray, the gray is what exists and these lines overlay the gray to show you that enlargement. 
And that enlargement is what triggers the necessity for the special permit and that enlargement 
also triggers the need for the, quote unquote, relocation. So, there was, when I first got the 
application I was a little confused about that particular point, you know, what was it that 
triggered that, because it didn't seem to be very obvious, it didn't jump off the page at me as to 
what that was, but that is precisely what triggers those two requirements in the request for the 
variances. The board has our proposed architectural plans, so what I’m, I'm just gonna run 
through the variances and then I'll turn it over to Chuck for a few minutes, to just give you an 
idea of what's going to be built, and then I'll come back and really get into the test for the 
variances. But, so we've, we are, with our proposal, seeking to construct a single-family 
residential structure. That structure is going to be connected by a deck in between the two 
properties. That deck is designed so as to not be, not qualify as impervious surface. We were 
advised by the town's engineer and the building department, if we maintained a particular 
distance between the boards that we wouldn't trigger impervious coverage, so we sought to do 
that because it seems to be a very obvious benefit, as far as dealing with impervious surfaces and 
being so close to the river.
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Chairman Robert Dee: Is that a deck or is that a walkway between the two structures?

Mike Liguori: It’s a deck.

Chairman Robert Dee: How far is, is it above the ground?

Mike Liguori: It's above the ground.

Chairman Robert Dee: Okay, deck above the ground but it, but you have,

Mike Liguori: It connects both, yes, it connects the two structures.

Chairman Robert Dee: Right.

Mike Liguori: And Chuck will get into the architecture. The, this house is designed, it's 
designed to, in such a way with the windows, it operates together, whereas you can see into each 
structure from the interior. Its complete design is for a singular purpose.

Leonard Lim: Have you put the walkway in the square footage?

Mike Liguori: As far as requiring-

Leonard Lim: The total square footage. If it’s enclosed, you gonna close the walkway?

Mike Liguori: No, we're not going to enclose the walkway. No. If we were to enclose the 
walkway, we would certainly have to include it in the square footage but because we are not 
enclosing it and because we are going to maintain a particular separation distance between the 
floorboards, we don't trigger the requirement for additional impervious surface.

Chairman Robert Dee: Okay. How long is the walkway? Do you know?

Mike Liguori: Chuck if you can, I’ll just have you jump in for a minute.

Chairman Robert Dee: Alright. Just one question, the length of it.

Chuck Lembo: You’re talking about-

Chairman Robert Dee: The walkway between the two houses.

Chuck Lembo: The deck?

Mike Liguori: Yeah, the deck.

Chairman Robert Dee: I’m talking about what connects the two houses.

Chuck Lembo: Yes, I understand.
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Leonard Lim: Well it's a walkway, deck.

Chuck Lembo: It's a deck it's not a walkway. It's um-

Chairman Robert Dee: Are you gonna walk on it to get from one house to the other?

Chuck Lembo: Yes, it's-

Chairman Robert Dee: Okay.

Chuck Lembo: The distance between the two structures is 22 feet. So, this dimension is 22 feet.

Chairman Robert Dee: So, the walkway or deck whatever you want to say is 22 feet.

Chuck Lembo: Yes, and it's the depth of, it’s about 31-foot six feet from where it starts and it 
ends in the back of this annex structure here.

Chairman Robert Dee: Okay. Quick question, I don’t want to get too involved. If you made 
that deck or walkway or whatever you want to call it shorter, would you need all the variances? 

Mike Liguori: If we made it shorter?

Chairman Robert Dee: Yeah.

Mike Liguori: No, no. So, let me just jump in and explain where the variances are triggered. No, 
the deck is not part of the, the deck is not relevant for purposes of-

Chairman Robert Dee: The deck is relevant. What I’m trying to say is, you’re talking about 
one house.

Mike Liguori: That's right.

Chairman Robert Dee: Two structures.

Mike Liguori: Two - yes.

Chairman Robert Dee: Okay, you need variances.

Mike Liguori: That's right.

Chairman Robert Dee: If you put them closer together-

Mike Liguori: Understood.

Chairman Robert Dee: Would you need less variances?
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Mike Liguori: Understood, yes. We, if the house was, if the two structures were brought 
together-

Chairman Robert Dee: Correct

Mike Liguori: We would require less of a variance on both the north and south side.

Chairman Robert Dee: That was my question, go ahead. You answered it.

Mike Liguori: Gotcha. Okay, so, the particular design and the variances that are needed the, I'll 
take it from 20, the north parcel first. We have a 20-foot side yard setback on this particular piece 
of property, it's non-conforming and, according to the regulations, that nonconformity in this 
particular area would trigger a 20-foot side yard. So, for the north property we have an existing 
5’ 9” setback to the north and we are proposing to maintain that exact 5’ 9” setback, we're not 
encroaching any further into the setback than what already exists. For the garage, the existing 
garage is about 3 Vi feet, like I said earlier, when I first started talking, that existing garage is 
going to be moved out of the, not out of the setback but it'll be moved and be 12’ 9” away from 
the northern property line. So, the nonconformity is being decreased from 3 feet to 12 feet, so we 
have an additional area that we are providing for that. The next variance for that garage is to, 
bear with me here. Okay, so the face of those garages, which are in this area here, those require a 
variance, there’s a 60-foot requirement from the east property line, which would be the front 
property line, and those structures are proposed at 27 feet. That 27 feet represents, on number 30 
almost exactly where the existing garage is, so we, we’re able to almost identically maintain that. 
On the 28 we come out a little bit further into that setback but both are at the 27-foot mark. So, 
we come out a little further than what exists but maintain uniformity along the front line. We felt 
that that would be aesthetically important to have that uniform location. On 30 we have an 
existing, again we need a 20-foot setback. We have approximately 19 Vi feet, so we need one, we 
need half a foot of a variance for the 30 Hudson River Lane. And then as far as the garage goes, 
we don't need a variance for the garage for the side yard, it's just that front yard that triggers the 
variance requirement. The last variance that’s required relates to the proposed deck to be 
constructed in the north west corner of the property. There's an exemption for a structure that's I 
believe up to 150 square feet, this covers 350 and it requires a permit and a variance in order for 
us to construct that. If it was at 150 square feet we'd be able to build it without triggering any 
variances. So-

Leonard Lim: That deck is going to be right up to the property line? 

Mike Liguori: So the, which deck? The, so in the middle?

Leonard Lim: No, the one on the river.

Chairman Robert Dee: The one you just spoke about.
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Mike Liguori: Oh yes. That is proposed to be located about six inches away from the property 
line to the north. And again, that’s subject to a 20-foot variance, so we're right on the, right on 
the property line.

Chairman Robert Dee: Okay.

Adam Rodd: This would be, just so I’m clear, a deck to the rear of the property identified as 28 
Hudson River?

Mike Liguori: That's correct.

Adam Rodd: And that’s a rear deck?

Mike Liguori: That's a rear deck. It's an independent deck, it's not, obviously, not connected to 
anything.

CROSSTALK - INAUDIBLE

Mike Liguori: Wooden deck on the ground.

Adam Rodd: Okay and that would need a side yard variance?

Mike Liguori: Yeah. From our reading of the code, because of the size, it appeared to trigger a, 
the need for a variance.

Adam Rodd: So, 20 feet is required and the sideyard setback you're proposing for the 
standalone deck on 28 would be?

Mike Liguori: Six inches.

Adam Rodd: Six inches from the-

Mike Liguori: From the North property line.

Adam Rodd: Okay.

Mike Liguori: Right and if-

Leonard Lim: How far is that deck from the house?

Mike Liguori: That deck is, let me just take a look at the scale. So we have one inch equals, is it, 
is that the-

Chuck Lembo: That’s 60, so about 90.

Mike Liguori: About 90 feet.
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Chairman Robert Dee: Okay, so you want to put a standalone deck and you're looking for a 19 
foot variance,

Mike Liguori: That’s correct.

Leonard Lim: Out of 20.

Chairman Robert Dee: Okay. Go ahead.

Mike Liguori: So those are the variances that are required. I'm gonna turn it over to Chuck as far 
as what the architectural is proposed to look like and then we'll come back and I'll address the 
criteria for the board.

Chuck Lembo: Good evening.

Chairman Robert Dee: Hi.

Chuck Lembo: Hi. Okay, so, the way this has been designed is that the structure on the 30 
property is the main living area of the house; this one has a living room, kitchen, and a bedroom, 
bathroom. The building up here, the annex building is what we've been calling it, this is a library, 
a art studio, there's a bathroom, and then a spiral stair that runs up to a, we're calling it a view 
perch, it's more like an observation deck with a roof, like a roof patio.

Chairman Robert Dee: Is there a kitchen in there?

Chuck Lembo: No there is not and there's not proposed one either.

Leonard Lim: How many square feet is that observation deck?

Chuck Lembo: I believe it's, hold on a second. I think it's 133, hold on. It’s actually enclosed, 
it's the second story of that house. It's 133 square feet.

Leonard Lim: And it’s enclosed.

Chuck Lembo: Yeah.

Leonard Lim: Okay.

Chuck Lembo: The house lies in an AE7 flood zone so the finished floor is set at 10 feet. So, 
you have 2 foot of free board up to 9 feet and then the actual structure, the building, anything 
above free, anything below free board has to be flood resistant material so we're pushing it up 
another feet so we can have, another foot so we can have a wood frame floor and still be within 
the requirements of the state flood code. So that's why these are set at 10 feet, which is roughly 5 
feet above grade. The grade is not meant to be regraded, it's just that the house will be, have a 
higher first floor than it currently has. And then the maximum, I believe we have 12-foot19



ceilings. Both the main structure and most of the annex are one-story with a 12-foot ceiling and 
then another 3 feet of roof structure and a parapet on top, so the overall height, 22 feet from 
grade. And then there'll be this deck at the same level, 10 feet above, 10-foot elevation, 5 feet 
above grade that connects both buildings. So the main entrance would be to come, you’d park 
over here, you walk between the 2 garage structures, go up the steps, and then you would enter 
the house or the annex from this deck.
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Chairman Robert Dee: Let me ask you a question. Looking at that, at your proposed photo 
there, the second building, what is that, the accessory building or what are you calling that? The 
one with the observation-

Chuck Lembo: This is the main house here and this, let me put this up. This is the main living 
structure here. This is the connecting and this is that annex building that houses the library, the 
art studio, the bathroom, and this small piece that pokes up above is the view, the observation-

Chairman Robert Dee: Observation room. What’s the height for the observation deck to the 
ground. Or vice versa.

Chuck Lembo: That would be, the top of the roof is elevation 34, so it's 29 feet above grade, 
overall, here, this dimension is 29.

Chairman Robert Dee: From the top of that-

Chuck Lembo: To grade.

Chairman Robert Dee: To grade, it’s gonna be 29 feet.

Chuck Lembo: Yes.

Chairman Robert Dee: Okay. Now that deck that runs between the two structures I guess, is 
there pilings on that deck? Is that what, how, you know I'm trying to look at it now.

Chuck Lembo: This is basically just, it's just a screened fence, like a decorative screening from 
the street with, you know, a gate, so-

Chairman Robert Dee: What’s the height of that deck from the grade level?

Chuck Lembo: 5 feet. The deck level is even with the finished floor levels of both structures, so 
they're all 5 feet.

Chairman Robert Dee: Okay. And we said that, the length of that deck again was, I forgot. 

Chuck Lembo: Say that again, I’m sorry?

Chairman Robert Dee: The length of that deck or the length of the walkway is?
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Chuck Lembo: Hold on. The width between the structures is, it's 22 feet.

Chairman Robert Dee: Okay.

Chuck Lembo: 22 feet between.

Chairman Robert Dee: So, it s 22 feet long.

Chuck Lembo: Yes.

Chairman Robert Dee: Okay. That was my question about if it was made shorter you would -

Chuck Lembo: I understand now.

Chairman Robert Dee: Need less variances.

Chuck Lembo: Yes.

Chairman Robert Dee: Okay. And the garage is, do you show the garages in your proposed?

Chuck Lembo: The garages are ghosted in and honestly, they haven't really been designed yet.
I mean they're basically just, they would, you know, emulate the same shape of the building, 
same similar materials, but they're just strictly used as a garage and for storage. They haven't, we 
haven’t really delved into any type of design development yet. They're just schematic boxes at 
this point.

Chairman Robert Dee: Well we’d have to have that before we made any decision.

Chuck Lembo: Alright.

Chairman Robert Dee: Okay. Any questions on this?

Leonard Lim: Yeah. The numbers here are confusing to me. You have a proposed living space 
2312.76.

Chuck Lembo: 2312, that's correct.

Leonard Lim: Okay and the existing you say is, what, 3165?

Mike Liguori: We, I made a mistake. I miscalculated the existing in the chart.

Leonard Lim: No wonder why my numbers don't add up.

Chairman Robert Dee: Can’t make any mistakes here. Numbers, we’ll check your numbers. 

Leonard Lim: Then the application’s wrong, if he doesn’t have the right numbers in it.
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Chairman Robert Dee: Well he’s gonna correct that.

Mike Liguori: (Inaudible) wrong. All the variances requested are correct.

Chairman Robert Dee: Okay.

Leonard Lim: I still don’t see the numbers adding up, I’m sorry.

Chairman Robert Dee: Okay. Let me ask you, I want to just ask you one question. Is this a “all 
in thing”? What I mean by that is, let's say the board felt that that deck in the back, standalone 
deck, that was too much of a variance. Does that kill your project?

Mike Liguori: I'd have to talk to the client. I'd ask them.

Chairman Robert Dee: What I'm trying to say is, you know, I’m asking because you know-

CROSSTALK - INAUDIBLE

Chairman Robert Dee: If it comes to where, let's just say at one point the deck is the, what 
turns it down, you know, you understanding, for the one piece, that’s what I'm trying to say.

Mike Liguori: I completely understand.

Chairman Robert Dee: Okay. Well you ask your, and at the next meeting you can get back to 
me.

Mike Liguori: Fantastic.

Chairman Robert Dee: Okay.

Mike Liguori: So, I'll, you guys have any more questions for Chuck?

Chairman Robert Dee: No, I think, you got any more questions on that?

Leonard Lim: Well, the numbers. You have here there's gonna be 2180 gross square feet of 
living space?

Chuck Lembo: 2312.

Mike Liguori: 2312.

Leonard Lim: 2312. And how much for the storage, building storage or garage, anything?

Mike Liguori: Yeah, the garage is, total-
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Chuck Lembo: 391?

Mike Liguori: That's correct. They total-

Leonard Lim: Go ahead, give me the total.

Mike Liguori: Okay. The total of the two is 792.

Leonard Lim: So that's over 3,100 square feet then, almost, right?

Chairman Robert Dee: Yeah.

Leonard Lim: But I don’t, 1 don't see how- you have here it's gonna decrease the square footage 
by 852 feet?

Mike Liguori: I made a mistake in the existing column of the chart.

Chairman Robert Dee: Okay.

Mike Liguori: In the text, if you flip to the prior page, I lay out what the existing conditions are.

Chairman Robert Dee: All right well could you give us a real, another copy with the correct 
figures?

Mike Liguori: Yes, certainly.

Chairman Robert Dee: Sure, okay, no problem.

Leonard Lim: That’s why my numbers are not adding up. Okay.

Mike Liguori: And, my apologies, I think what I did was, I had messed up the difference 
between the square footage of the area versus surfaces, living area versus surfaces, in that 
particular, in that chart.

Chairman Robert Dee: Okay.

Leonard Lim: So, you see where I’m coming from, the numbers just didn’t add up at all.

Mike Liguori: Completely understand.

Chairman Robert Dee: Right and, like, you’re talking about garages, and you're gonna, you’re 
looking for a variance for a garage, correct?

Mike Liguori: We need a variance to have garages.
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Chairman Robert Dee: Okay. We have to know what it looks like, okay? So there's way you’re, 
there’s no way in hell I'm gonna say to you, okay fine I'll give you a variance for a garage, we 
have no idea what it even looks like.
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Mike Liguori: Understood.

Chairman Robert Dee: So, there's a lot of things missing here, in this puzzle, okay? I know, I 
see you got six letters for, in favor.

Mike Liguori: That’s right.

Chairman Robert Dee: I think, right?

Mike Liguori: Yes.

Chairman Robert Dee: Alright, that’s a tie, you got six against, okay? There’s a letter in here 
from, a seven-page letter, from six neighbors who have a lot of concerns.

Mike Liguori: Right, we have a copy of that letter which we'd like to go through. Obviously, if 
you'd open the public hearing, certainly we’d hope you-

Chairman Robert Dee: I don’t know if we have to go through it tonight because I'll tell you, 
there’s a lot here missing. First of all, I wouldn’t even want to look at this without an approval 
from the wetlands board, Conservation Board.

Mike Liguori: Can we talk about that for a minute?

Chairman Robert Dee: Sure.

Mike Liguori: Okay. I wanted to touch on that in particular because it's very important for us to 
tackle the Zoning Board at the outset. And the rationale is, you know, particularly from an 
environmental perspective, is that there's still a lot left to do municipally, as far as approvals go 
after the zoning board. We don't, we, let's say, hypothetically, you know, variances were granted 
for the project. Next stop would be the Conservation Commission, we'd also deal with the DEC 
and the Army Corps of Engineers. It's not zoning board then building permit. So, respectfully, 
we also don't believe that the claim of the neighbors that we’re gonna have a significant, you 
know, environmental impact by our project, there's no basis that forth, you know, in their letter 
with any, you know, professional support. If you take a step back and say, hey what's going on 
here, we have a new house that's going to get built on Hudson River Lane. There have been a 
number of reconstructions that have gone on on Hudson River Lane, including by all of the 
people that have complained in that particular letter. There's either been renovation or 
construction of some sort. So, just taking a step back and saying, hey what's really going on here, 
we have a construction of a single-family residence on a piece of property that's next to the 
Hudson River. In our opinion, you know, that's not particularly unique to any of the properties 
that exist on the river, but more importantly is that the Conservation Commission will dive into 
the environmental aspect of the construction and make sure that we have an erosion and24
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sedimentation control plan, take a look at where the well is, examine what we have, you know, 
been able to get conditionally approved by the Health Department. So, what we'd like to do, and 
the reason why we tackled the Zoning Board first is, you drive our design. We don't know what 
our zoning is, what our setbacks are, until we finish with the Zoning Board of Appeals, and it's a 
heavy-lift, it’s an expensive project. And the risk is, we spend a lot of money on design, right, we 
satisfy the Conservation Commission, hypothetically, and then we get here and we don't have 
success here at the Zoning Board. So, the thought was, and the rationale is, let’s tackle the 
Zoning Board. We can make the Zoning Board aware, I think you guys are fully aware that if the 
next lap was the Conservation Commission, you guys don't lock in anybody. All you do is set 
our parameters for zoning purposes. If we don't satisfy the Conservation Commission, its end of 
story, we don't go anywhere. We, you know, we basically go back to the drawing board and say 
is there another way to tackle this thing that doesn't require variances or, frankly, is there another 
way to tackle this thing that would satisfy the Conservation Commission. So, for us, it’s, getting 
that lockdown is critical and for you guys, I think you can feel comfortable knowing that the 
Conservation Commission is going to do the deep dive on the environmental review that's 
required. And it's not to say you guys would put off any environmental review. I, frankly, the 
appropriate thing to do is to take a look at this thing, look at the area variances, see if the area 
variances do create some environmental impact, that's clearly part of the test. But the 
construction is really what, in our opinion, it's the construction and the impact of the construction 
that we believe the Conservation Commission is going to be looking at in depth, in order to 
determine whether or not there's going to be an environmental impact. So, we think you guys 
should feel comfortable knowing that they would come next, that we're not getting around 
anything, it's where we would end up immediately after here, and them simultaneously with 
DEC and Army Corps. So, with that ahead of us, I don't think we need to hang back with the 
Zoning Board until they're all done, because to spend all that money, have all those drawings 
designed, have John do all of our civil engineering, create all those plans, and then get here and 
not have success, would be a really inefficient use of resources. That's why we chose to come 
here first.

Chairman Robert Dee: Okay. Were you here at last month's meeting?

Mike Liguori: I was.

Chairman Robert Dee: Okay and did you hear the gentlemen that had a pool, wanted to put a 
pool in down on Hudson River Lane?

Mike Liguori: I did and I know he went to the conservation first.

Chairman Robert Dee: He went to Conservation first.

Mike Liguori: He did. That’s correct.

Chairman Robert Dee: You're going to do the same thing here. We're not going to look at this 
until it goes before the Conservation Board, okay? You explained this, you got to, there’s a 
couple, there’s a lot of things missing, okay? We want to see the garages. I know it's an expense, 
I understand it and I can understand not wanting to do it, 1 understand. But we can't just do it. I25



mean, if I’m gonna send a pool to the Conservation Board before we vote on it, I'm certainly 
going to send a house to the Conservation Board before we vote on it.
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Leonard Lim: 2 houses.

Chairman Robert Dee: 2 houses, well-

Mike Liguori: It’s one house.

Chairman Robert Dee: One house. It’s one house with a bridge but, so that’s would be my 
opinion. My opinion is that we're going to keep the meeting open until such a time and I'll tell 
you the other thing makes me uncomfortable is the property is not joined together. I understand 
what you’re saying, you know, that they want, you know, don’t spend the money-

Mike Liguori: Can you get advice from your attorney on that? Because you're uncomfortable 
but there isn't a basis for the uncomfortability. You have-

Chairman Robert Dee: Well, yeah, I'll tell you what- there is a basis, because I've got two 
separate lots. So, let's, we'll have to do, write the whole thing over, and you want variances on 
two separate lots. You're asking me to give variances as one piece, is that correct?

Mike Liguori: Chairman Dee-

Chairman Robert Dee: I'm, answer my question please. I asked you, are you asking me to give 
variances as if it’s one piece?

Mike Liguori: No, because the variances don't take effect until the lots get merged. They 
legally do not take effect.

Chairman Robert Dee: Okay.

Mike Liguori: Lookthey’re-

Chairman Robert Dee: We’re gonna keep this open, we’re gonna keep this open, okay, until 
such a time that you come back here with a approval from the Conservation Board.

Mike Liguori: Okay. So, is, are you going to open the public hearing or are we not going to 
open the public hearing?

Chairman Robert Dee: At this point time no, I’m not going to open the public hearing.

Mike Liguori: Okay.

Chairman Robert Dee: Well, no I have to open the public hearing because, and I'll have, to 
keep it open I would have to open the public hearing, yes. I can’t-
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Adam Rodd: Well just to clarify, this was noticed for today for the commencement of a public 
hearing. So, we started the public hearing, we received testimony. The Chairman, as I understand 
it, would like to get input from the Conservation Board on the proposal, similar to the last 
application that was made on Hudson River Lane, where they needed a Conservation Board 
approval. So, the public hearing would be kept open-

Mike Liguori: Well it hasn't been opened, there hasn't been a resolution to open the public 
hearing. I mean, if the board voted to open the public hearing, unless you say it’s customary for 
the board to just come in and it’s open-

Chairman Robert Dee: Well, it’s customary for here, with the application-

Mike Liguori: My experience has been, the board makes a motion to open the public hearing.

Adam Rodd: Maybe I am misunderstanding but at the last public, at the last meeting it was a 
review for completeness.

Mike Liguori: Correct.

Adam Rodd: And I believe the Board determined that the application, at that point, was 
complete.

Mike Liguori: Right.

Adam Rodd: It was then noticed, and I see it on the agenda unless there’s a misprint, that this is 
a public hearing for 28 and 30 Hudson River-

Mike Liguori: I get, my question is, is it customary for the board to take a vote to open the 
public hearing or is it just, it is what it is. It is the public hearing? The board doesn’t-

Adam Rodd: Yeah, I guess to answer your question, it is what it is. We voted that it was 
complete-

Mike Liguori: Okay.

Adam Rodd: At the last meeting, it was noticed for today, so the public hearing commenced. 
You gave testimony at the part of the, the public hearing.

Mike Liguori: Okay.

Adam Rodd: And I believe that the board wants to get input from the Conservation Board as to 
those issues. So, we're gonna, I would suggest that, obviously, you keep the public hearing open, 
this public hearing.

Mike Liguori: That's fine, I just wasn't sure if it was officially opened or you opened it before 
he turned it over to the public. That's all and the reason why it was relevant is that, if it hadn't27
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officially been opened and we had to go to Conservation Commission before coming back, you 
might have required a re-noticing depending on time. I was really just drawing down on what 
would technically be required.

Chairman Robert Dee: No, it’s open.

Mike Liguori: Okay.

Chairman Robert Dee: Okay, is there anything else you’d like to speak on?

Mike Liguori: I guess the question is if you want me to address any of the criteria or if you 
want to just wait until we-

Chairman Robert Dee: I think, you know, I think you, you've covered mostly everything. I 
think, you could say the reason the conservation board has to look at this before we look at it 
because there's a big part of it is underwater, I mean, you know, it is a flood area.

Mike Liguori: Yeah, that we understand. I mean, you know, there's no construction proposed in 
the underwater part.

Chairman Robert Dee: Right, so (inaudible) sent the pool, a fellow to put a pool, down to 
Conservation Board, you know, I'm gonna send a house, that's for sure, okay, to look at it. And 
you're gonna have to come back with the garages, plans for the garages because we certainly 
can't give a variance on something we don't know what it's gonna look like. All right. Anybody 
in the audience want to speak to this here tonight? No? Okay. All right we’re gonna keep the 
public hearing open. Any questions from the board? Okay.

Mike Liguori: Thank you.

Chairman Robert Dee: Thank you sir. At this time, I'll make the motion we close.

Leonard Lim: Second.

Chairman Robert Dee: Second, alright. All in favor?

Leonard Lim: Aye.

Granite Frisenda: Aye.

Chairman Robert Dee: Aye. Okay.

(The meeting adjourned at 8:26 pm by a unanimous decision.)

NOTE: These minutes were prepared for the Zoning Board of Appeals and are subject
to review, comment, emendation and approval thereupon.
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DATE APPROVED:_____________________

Respectfully submitted,

Tara K. Percacciolo 
Secretary
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Town of Philipstown
Code Enforcement Office 

238 Moin Street, PO Box 155
Cold Spring, NY 10516 

Office (845) 265- 5202 Fax (845) 265-2687

5/24/2018Gregory Rathe 
167 rt 301 
Cold Spring NY

Re: Proposed Garage
Location: 28 Hudson Way
Tax# 38.-3-87.1

Included:
1. Application for building permit
2. Plans for proposed Garage
3. Site plan showing proposed location

The application proposes a detached garage located 30’ off North property line.
The Proposed structure is 2000 square feet.

The Town of Philipstown Code Chapter 175-10 (D) states in part
“attached garages associated with single family residences shall not exceed 1000 sf 
In foot print area”
Since the proposed garage does not comply with the requirements of the code,
The application is DENIED.

If you are aggrieved by this decision, you may submit an application to the Zoning 
Board of Appeals pursuant to the provisions of Article IV of the Town Code within 
60 days of this letter. An application is enclosed

Greg Wunner
-----------

Code enforcement Officer



APPEAL #_
Final hearing data

Date application submitted 

Application fee $. too

Tax Map # O-QT

Zoning Board decision APPROVED / DENIED

Escrow $___________Received by__________

To the Zoning Board of Appeals, Town of Philipstown, New York:

| _________________

residing at__ 1 'ScA t \c6
Telephone: home_ _ business, Z\ Z-
HEREBY appeal the decision of (name and title)______________________________________________

whereby he/she

GRANTED____DENIED_____  a BUILDING PERMIT____ a CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY____

For___________ _______________________________________________________________________

To _____________________________________________________

of ____________________________________________________________ _______

For property at tax map #________________________ _ irt zoning district_______________________

WHEN FILLING OUT APPLICATION, ATTACH ADDITIONAL PAGES AS NECESSARY TO ANSWER 
QUESTIONS.

1. LOCATION OF PROPERTY: (Give 911 address and a map and detailed narrative giving 
directions to the property using road names, such as Route 9 or 9D, Old Albany Post Road, East 
Mountain Road South, etc. and landmarks such as Garrison School, North Highlands Fire House, 
Highlands Country Club, etc:

ColP •

2. NAMES AND ADDRESSES OF ADJOINING PROPERTY OWNERS (Include those opposite on 

streeis/highways Use additional sheets if necessary. This information may be obtained in the Town assessor's office)

-2 0



J. PROVISIONS OH ZONING CODE: INVOLVED (glva Article, Snellen, Stib'Mollon, purnortph by number 
Do not quote lent of code)

4, PREVIOUS APPEAL (If there havo been any previous appeals lor Ihls properly or any portion thereof, set forth the 
appeal number, dole, relief sought nnd the ZBA decision resulting) .

Me-

TYPE OF APPEAL:

______an INTERPRETATION of the Zoning Code or Maps

V a VARIANCE from Ihe Zoning Cods

______a SPECIAL USE PERMIT under Ihe Zoning Code

5, DETAILS OF APPEAL (Complete only that section which applies lo the appeal you are submilling)

(a) INTERPRETATION of the Zoning Code is requested 

(1) An exact statement of the interpretation requested is:

X dLo >



3) a VARIANCE from tlm Zo1 ling Code Is requested:

0) An exacl statement df the details of the variance requested Is:

^2MV

(2) The grounds on which

" •^'W-'Aoo' 

- T=

this variance should be granted are:

, 3ELXt S»T\

2>JcZ -

G^S.srS V

(c) a SPECIAL USE PERtyliT is requested:

(1) The reason the pe mil is requested: Tc=

(2) Art exact statement of use for which the permit is requested:

(2-t^erGei -

I
(3) The facts showing the use is permitted as a SPECIAL USE under the code and the 

ability of the applicant to comply with all requirements of the code for granting of a 
special use permit:



■ PHILIPSTOWN ZONING BOARD OP APPEALS
SUPPLEMENTAL WORKSHEET FOR AREA VARIANCE APPLICANTS

In accordance with state law, the Zoning Board must grant or deny an area variance based on specified factors ©nd n 
balancing of "the benefit to the Applicant If the variance Is granted, es weighed against the detriment to the health, surety 
and welfare of tho neighborhood or community". We Iwvo developed this Supplement to assist you with preparing, 
sub,Milling end presenting your case to the Zoning Board. Please complete tho factors la - 5 below and submit with you, 
application (attach additional pages if necessary), We have provided suggested questions which will assist you In 
answering each factor and In preparing for the Board's review, Il Is strongly suggested that you structure your 
presentation at tho hearing in accordance with the factors. Provide fads and proof to support each factor

FACTORS TO 8E CONSIDERD BY THE BOARD

a. What possible detriment would the variance have on nearby properties?
How close are nearby structures? - Will your structure be visible to others or will It 

block a view? - Do you propose exterior lights? i. < _____
tfbSCu SO

• W),CX- (O<5x~ S^erO

1b. What impacts would the variance have on the character of the neighborhood?
Have others In the neighborhood received similar variances? - Does the 
Neighborhood contain similar structures with similar selbacks/heights etc.?
Is your property similar to or different from others in the area? - If savorai of your 
neighbors were to receive variances in the future similar to the one you now request, 
would the neighborhood be changed?

-

2. If you didn't get the variance, how else could you build what you want or accomplish your 
goal?

For example: different location or design; shorter fence;smalter deck; smaller 
overhang or addition?

VS- Tc>0

3 What is Code requirement you seek to vary?__________________________ ,__________

How large of a variance do you seek? .___ _______________________________



Whul Impact or effect will the vailunce hove on the currant physical end environmental
conditions in the area? Is there grading (or blasting) proposed? - Will you be paving previously unpavad

surfaces? - Are you proposing to remove any vegetation? - Are there wetlands or 
other watercourses on site? ~ Will normal drainage patterns be effected? - How 
close are the nearest wells and septic systems? - Will the proposed use or activity 
produce emissions (noise 01 odors)? - Will traffic be Increased? - Is Ihe area considered scenic?

fempJa-C pF

Is the variance requested as a result of a "self-created hardship"?
Was there a need for Ihe variance when you purchased the property? - How long 
ago did you purchase the properly? - Did you build the structure without a permit? 
Is the need for a variance as a result of someone's mistake? Describe



;5 fA, E 01 NEW YORK, COUN I Y OF PUTNAM _______ ____ ____ __________ _____________________

being duty sworn,/aye,1 I have read the foregoing tippefll end patparu nlleched; that the otalements and 
mprosenUJIous cnodo therein ure true to the boat of my knowledge end belief.

LINDA M. VALENTINO 
Notary Public, State of New York 

No. 01VA6056840 
Qualified in Putnam County 

Commission Expires April 2,20j_3

SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS: (1) Por ti VARIANCE or INTERPRETATION plaaso submil (7) 
Individual packets

(2) For a SPECIAL USE PERMIT please submit (19) individual packets

each packet containing one each of the below listed items. These Items are very specific and MUST be 
complied with exactly

1. Completed appeal form
2. Deed to property
3. Denied application for Building Permit or Certificate of Occupancy
4. Building plans with ONE ORIGINAL professional seal and signature
5. Survey prepared by NYS licensed surveyor, showing all property lines, structures and 

dimensions to property lines. One survey with ORIGINAL professional seal and signature
6. Certificates of Occupancy for any existing structures
7. Contour maps as required by conditions
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Deed lor 2U Hudson Way



Deed fur 23 Hudson Way
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Deed lur 2U Hudson Way

Gregory Rathe | The Displayed | Principal | 212 620 5555 | 1hedisplayers.com ) Linkedln | Instagram

1hedisplayers.com


f' TOWN OR PHIUPITOW I 
»J» Main Ilf nt ROIm 111 ' 

Oold Spring, NY 10111 
(M«)20M20I / (l4i)MMUT(M

CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY

SEC-BLK-LOT: 89/38.-3-87.1 Permit No: 2014:11407

CO/CC Issue Date: 12/22/2014 CO/CC Number: 2014:11467

OWNER'S NAME: BANK OF AMERICA 
& ADDRESS 214 NORTH TRYON STREET

21 ST FLOOR 
CHARLOTTE, NC 28255

Location of project: 28 HUDSON WAY

WORK DESCRIPTION : DEMOLITION OF CARRIAGE HOUSE (GARAGE) 25' X 65’

A building permit having been issued for the herein described project, all required 
inspections having been completed, all required documentation having been presented, 
and the project having been found to be complete and in compliance with all applicable 
codes, rules, and laws, this certificate is hereby issued.

ISSUED BY :

Code Enforcement Officer

NOT VALID UNLESS SIGNED IN INK BY A DULY AUTHORIZED AGENT AND 
UNDER THE SEAL OF THE TOWN OF PHILIPSTOWN
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Philipstown Tax Map. 

Location of Premises

CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY Ml-3-?/
Block *)'

6289
°l BlockCZ LoU2C— . .

Lt__5_c_2__
Q( S<wv^_

cation for a bulding permit pursuant to the Zoning Law, Sant tar

Location oi premises__
“ll/W ItAUYTOf ___2sd±±Z2ZZr_---------- having

heretofore fifed an application for a bulding permit pursuant to the Zoning Law, Sanitary Code, Build ing Code and the 
Laws in effect in the Town of Philipstown, Putnam County, New York, having paid the required fee therefore and the 
undersigned having by inspection ascertained that the applicant has subsequently proceeded with the erection or im
provement of the proposed structure In compliance with the requirements of the laws as aforementioned and that the 
said work and materials met every requirement of the laws as aforementioned and that the premises have now been 
fully completed and are ready for occupancy pursuant to the provisions of law, Now, therefore, this certificate of 

occupancy is hereby issued under the seal of the Town of Philipstown this , ^CjLday of
S twsLt ULpAf , 4*

. ■ , ' vV<> Ws.
Not valid vnlcu tinned In ink by a duly authorized aflcni and under I By

<U/UwC-r

Ihe acal ill Hie Town nt Ptliliptiown.

19^^.

TOWN OS PHILIPSTOWN, NEW YORK

IIHLUINC INJWOR

Pho Cold Spring Press, Cold Soong. NY

S /<ll>-cA5ccl V Y>li<BUILDING PERMIT
Philipstown Tax Map. 

Location of Premises

7 co '^3
6209

&

Block.

Kjz„3.g4-
-V Lo, nx

yM1 pAa5~f~R<auv--‘gl
iretofore fifed an application for avbuildin'g
iws m£ffecUm ihe Town of Philipstown

/P wi/

*=>xj ha vi r
heretofore fifed an application for a,buildin'g permit pursuant to the Zoning Law, Sanitary Code, Building Code and tf 
Laws 
of
improvement is intende< 
hereby granted this

Additional

to_and will con; 
day of.

Putnam County, New York, having paid the required fee in the su 
it appearing from the said application that the propose

>ly with the requirements of the law as aforementioned, a building permit

.. 19 £fO.

Nul valid mdesi itgiii'd in ink by a duly aitlliniited agerll and undrr 

the se*l u( ihe Town ol f'bilipiluwn

WN, NEW YORK

Tne Cold Spring Press Cold Spring, NY



BUILDING DEPARTMENT

TOWN OF PHILIPSTOWN 
Town Hall, Cold Spring, N. Y. 10516

Tel. 265 • 3329 ■

Certificate of Occupancy
1 <» <5 A/OJ? J fp , Ji".‘
^T^^existing^NonZonforming USE 't Tm. 3^-2. -"2-

DateMAA.Crt.l. i.. .. 19

THIS CERTIFIES premises owned by H'H C-iFAC L {-. at

TilftiClt}A. J.45?!^?. and described as ...R.7.%.0............................

were in existence and used as ./A .^'S. .W.\ . //faff? Y\ .fc&i P.&tiPfcr.
on April 23, 1957, the effective date of the Zoning Ordinance of the Town of Philips- 
town; that such premises and use continue unchanged to the date hereof and ere an 
existing non-conforming use under and subject to the provisions of said Ordinance, 
and the amendments thereto.

This certificate is issued in that said premises are in aA*?^ 9....... District and

□ Are being used as . X . .□ Lot area is Width of lot

is ............ ft * □ Total percentage of lot covered is . . . /

□ Yard dimensions are: Front??.?...; Side?. I Rear 7;\
/* ■ 'X /' \ z >2a’SJ rre-P ,

□ Accessory building or use teXGfrA.|.V?VSh\)77.'I?.0.L.: ?/. A.................... ................
□ Other .C.7?'77.. .CA A'b’A. .T?).. V. iVZF.?............

□ Accessory building or use isC^'X A'f’XV-). .TfcA-fWA. . ............................
□ Other .PJ?l.V ..^ATV.?Ff?.Avt/A..........................

□ Accessory building or use is .(_.Q7'.?. FX.......................
□ Other .................................. C. ?pvZ. .TV.). I ?. Zf.RF?........................................

□ Accessory building or use is .C.RVF/. .tV.Z?, ZATbS. .R.9AAY?

□ Other ................... ......................................................................................................... ..............

Applicant acquired premises from ^7. ............................by deed

dated . J 5j. J/t'/'Z................ and recorded in the Putnam County Clerk's of-
hce J in Liber 7? 7., Page 2 7 ?. f? H31)

Now, therefore, this Certificate of Occupancy is issued under the seal of the Town 
of Philipstown, this .. day of 19

Issued >£o
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NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a public hearing will be held by the Zoning Board of Appeals 
of the Town of Philipstown on Monday June 11, 2018 at 7:30 P.M. at the Philipstown Town Hall, 
238 Main Street, Cold Spring, New York to hear the following appeal:

Leonard & Karen Lindros, 593 Route 9D, Garrison, TM# 81.-1-33. The applicants are seeking 
approval to build a new, 24 x 24-foot, detached garage which requires a variance for a sideyard 
setback. The applicant is proposing a setback of 10 feet, where 30 feet is required under the 
Town of Philipstown Code Chapter 175 Dimensional Table. The property is located in the RR 
Zoning District.

At said hearing all persons will have the right to be heard. Copies of the application, plat map, 
and other related materials may be seen in the Office of the Building Department, 2 Cedar Street, 
Cold Spring, New York.

Dated 5/25/2018



Date: 5/14/18

To: Town of Philipstown Zoning Board of Appeals 238 Main St.Cold Spring, NY 10516
RE: The Ward residence69 Hy Vue Terrace ColdSpring, NY 10516
To Whom it May Concern,

I am writing to express my strong support for the proposed construction of the single story garage on the property of my neighbors Dan & Rebecca Ward located at #69 Hy Vue Terrace, Cold Spring, NY TM#27.8-l-47 which is currently under your review. I have examined their construction plan and would like to express my full endorsement of the variance approval being sought from the Zoning Board of Appeals for the project. I feel that the proposed structure will be in keeping with the neighborhood as a whole and knowing Dan & Rebecca for many years, 1 have the utmost confidence that the project will be done properly and with the purest of intent for the final intended use. Please feel free to contact me with any questions/ concerns.
Regards,
60 Hy Vue TerraceColdSpring, NY 10516(914) 403-5147


